
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
March 4, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 4, 2010 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.   
 







Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 
 
D.   Adoption of Resolution 10-04, Accepting an Easement Deed from Osiride A. 


Fazzi and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be 
Recorded a Certificate of Acceptance;  and  


 
 Resolution 10-05, Accepting an Easement Deed from Gregory L. Marino and 


Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be Recorded a 
Certificate of Acceptance; and 


 
 Resolution 10-06, Accepting an Easement Deed from Erik and Karen Beyer and 


Authorizing the General Manager to Execute and Cause to be Recorded a 
Certificate of Acceptance 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-07, Approving the Construction Project 


Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract for the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1, 
and Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of $92,833 
and Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000 (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Budget (Est. time 


30 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Implementing a toilet rebate program (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Conducting an RFP for auditing services (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
 
 B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 


 2







 3


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
February 4, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Michael Celentano, District Auditor 
      David Long 
      Brent Beazor 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 


p.m.) 
 
The GM noted that a corrected Minutes for the January 7, 2010 Board meeting had been passed 
out. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Wikle seconded.  
Board Secretary Julie Kenny read the titles of Ordinance 42 and Ordinance 43 into the record.  
Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Schaap abstained from voting on Item III-A, Approval of 
the Minutes of the January 7, 2010 Board Meeting because he was absent for that meeting.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 7, 2010 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 


 1







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  


(1) Letter dated 01/18/2010 from SSWD (Jim Quigley) to Kathleen Kane, 
CDC  


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) 


A. (6:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final 
Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009.  District Auditor Michael Celentano 
provided an overview of this item and took questions from the Board.  Director Robb-
Wilder moved to approve Resolution 10-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2009.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


B. (7:07 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-02, Approving Mid-Year 
Adjustments to the FY 2009-10 Operating and Capital Budget.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Schaap moved to adopt Resolution 
10-02, Approving Mid-Year Adjustments to the FY 2009-10 Operating and Capital 
Budget.   Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


C. (7:12 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (2nd Quarter, FY 
2009-10, Operations and Capital).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions ensued.  No formal action was taken.  


 ** At the request of the General Manager, Item V-E was considered next. 


E. (7:22 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-03, Approving an Agreement with 
Brelje & Race Engineers for Construction Management and Inspection Services for 
the CIP IV-B, Project 1 and Project 2.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by David Long of Brelje & Race 
Engineers.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 10-03, Approving an Agreement 
with Brelje & Race Engineers for Construction Management and Inspection Services for 
the CIP IV-B, Project 1 and Project 2.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


D. (7:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Implementing a two-year budget / Coordination 
with Capital Improvement Program.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. CIP IV-B 
6. Toilet Rebate Program  
 
 


 2







VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:08 p.m.) 


 
Director Schaap announced that the Monte Rio Chamber is developing a newsletter and soliciting 
comments. 
 
Director Schaap announced that the Northwood Golf Course was ranked 3rd in a survey of 25 
nine-hole golf courses in a golf magazine. 
 
Director Smith announced that she would be interviewed on KZST regarding a proposed 
Equestrian Park. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:21 p.m.) 
 
At 8:21 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:23 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. At 8:36 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
  No action was taken. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  No action was taken. 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:36 p.m.) 
 
1. Toilet rebate program 
2. Award of CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 construction 
3. Draft FY 2010-11 Budget 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 


 3







 4


 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:08 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:21 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:36 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: March 4, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF EASEMENT RESOLUTIONS FOR HANDY ANDY 
PROJECT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolutions 10-04, 10-05, and 10-06 which 
accept easements for the Handy Andy line feed project, which is part of CIP IV-B, 
Project 1, and authorize the General Manager to execute and cause to be recorded 
certificates of acceptance for the easements.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Handy Andy line feed project, part of CIP IV-B, Project 1, and located between 
Highway 116 and Old Monte Rio Road west of Guerneville, requires rerouting of the line 
through private property and these new routes require easements.  Brelje and Race 
Engineers has negotiated the easements associated with Resolutions 10-04, 10-05, and 
10-06 with the owners of the properties in question: 
 


• Resolution 10-04 authorizes an easement through Mr. Osiride A. Fazzi’s property, 
• Resolution 10-05 authorizes an easement through Mr. Gregory L. Marino’s 


property, and 
• Resolution 10-06 authorizes an easement through Mr. and Mrs. Beyer’s property. 


 
The District has paid for all costs associated with the easements and is making no 
payments to the property owners for the easements. 







Resolution No. 10-04 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT DEED AND 


AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND CAUSE TO BE 
RECORDED A CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE    


 
[Portions of Assessor's Parcel No. 072-211-035] 


 
WHEREAS, Osiride A. Fazzi has approved and expressed his intention to execute a 
form of Easement Deed approved by District General Counsel for a public utility 
easement to allow installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line near the 
Handy Andy Booster pump site, said easement being located over portions of that 
certain real property located near Highway 116, Guerneville, CA. (“the Subject 
Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Fazzi has executed a form of Easement Deed in substantially the same 
form as prepared by District General Counsel for a public utility easement for purposes 
of installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line over the Subject 
Property; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that it is desirable and necessary for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) to acquire a public utility easement for 
the purposes described herein;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of Directors that a grant of 
a public utility easement, as described herein, is hereby accepted.    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute a Certificate of Acceptance (form of Certificate of Acceptance 
attached as Exhibit “A”) and to do all things necessary to finalize the transaction 
contemplated in said Easement Deed on behalf of the District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 
4, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 10-04,  Exhibit A.   
 


CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 
 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


 
Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-035  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-04, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-035, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Osiride 
A. Fazzi on January 29, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement Deed by the 
Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
_____  __________  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 







 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 


 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-035  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-04, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-035, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Osiride 
A. Fazzi on January 29, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement Deed by the 
Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
_____  __________  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 







Resolution No. 10-05 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT DEED AND 


AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND CAUSE TO BE 
RECORDED A CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE    


 
[Portions of Assessor's Parcel No. 072-211-034] 


 
WHEREAS, Gregory L. Marino has approved and expressed his intention to execute a 
form of Easement Deed approved by District General Counsel for a public utility 
easement to allow installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line near the 
Handy Andy Booster pump site, said easement being located over portions of that 
certain real property located near Highway 116, Guerneville, CA. (“the Subject 
Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Marino has executed a form of Easement Deed in substantially the 
same form as prepared by District General Counsel for a public utility easement for 
purposes of installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line over the 
Subject Property; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that it is desirable and necessary for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) to acquire a public utility easement for 
the purposes described herein;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of Directors that a grant of 
a public utility easement, as described herein, is hereby accepted.    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute a Certificate of Acceptance (form of Certificate of Acceptance 
attached as Exhibit “A”) and to do all things necessary to finalize the transaction 
contemplated in said Easement Deed on behalf of the District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 
4, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 10-05,  Exhibit A. 
  


CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 
 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


 
Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-034  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-05, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-034, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Gregory 
L. Marino on January 29, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement Deed by the 
Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
___  ____________  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 







 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 


 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-034  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-05, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-034, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Gregory 
L. Marino on January 29, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement Deed by the 
Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
___  ____________  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 







Resolution No. 10-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT DEED AND 


AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND CAUSE TO BE 
RECORDED A CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE    


 
[Portions of Assessor's Parcel No. 072-211-033] 


 
WHEREAS, Erik Beyer and Karen Beyer have approved and expressed their intention to 
execute a form of Easement Deed approved by District General Counsel for a public 
utility easement to allow installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line 
near the Handy Andy Booster pump site, said easement being located over portions of 
that certain real property located near Highway 116, Guerneville, CA. (“the Subject 
Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Beyer have executed a form of Easement Deed in 
substantially the same form as prepared by District General Counsel for a public utility 
easement for purposes of installing, maintaining and repairing a water transmission line 
over the Subject Property; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that it is desirable and necessary for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) to acquire a public utility easement for 
the purposes described herein;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of Directors that a grant of 
a public utility easement, as described herein, is hereby accepted.    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute a Certificate of Acceptance (form of Certificate of Acceptance 
attached as Exhibit “A”) and to do all things necessary to finalize the transaction 
contemplated in said Easement Deed on behalf of the District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 
4, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







 
Resolution 10-06, Exhibit A. 


 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 


 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-033  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-06, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-033, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Erik 
Beyer and Karen Beyer on February 8, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs 
Water District consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement 
Deed by the Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
________  _______  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 







 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT DEED 


 BY SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


Date of Easement Deed: _November 17, 2009 APN: Portions of 072-211-033  
 
 
Pursuant to the authorization and direction of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, expressed in Resolution 10-06, the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District does hereby accept that certain Easement Deed pertinent to portions of that real 
property identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number 072-211-033, located on Highway 116, 
Guerneville, Sonoma County, California.  The Easement Deed was executed by Erik 
Beyer and Karen Beyer on February 8, 2010 (notarized signature).  Sweetwater Springs 
Water District consents to the recordation of this Certificate of Acceptance of Easement 
Deed by the Office of the County Recorder of the County of Sonoma, California. 
 
 
March 4, 2010   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
      By: _______________________ 
      Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
________  _______  
Julie Kenny, Secretary to Board of Directors  
 





		Item III-D - Approval of Easement Resolutions

		Item III-D.1 Resolution 10-04 accepting easment deed Fazzi

		Item III-D.1.1 Certificate of Acceptance Fazzi

		Item III-D.2 Resolution 10-05 accepting easment deed Marino

		Item III-D.2.1 Certificate of Acceptance Marino

		Item III-D.3 Resolution 10-06 accepting easment deed Beyer

		Item III-D.3.1-Certificate of Acceptance Beyer






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A.   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : March 4, 2010  
 
Subject:  AWARD OF CIP PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 1 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT                   
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 10-07 which conditionally awards the 
CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 construction contract to W.R. Forde Associates for a not to 
exceed amount of $928,332.00 and authorizes the General Manager to approve change 
orders for a total amount not to exceed $92,833.00 with no single change order 
exceeding $25,000.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $928,332, plus up to $92,833 in possible change orders, 
approximately 75% to be funded from Sonoma County Community  Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA) grant funding which was approved in December 2009 by the RDA  and 
25% from the Sweetwater Springs Water District Private Placement Loan. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Replacement of aging water main infrastructure is an important activity of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Toward that end the District has developed a 
multiyear capital improvement program that has prioritized the capital infrastructure 
that needs to be replaced or improved.  The District is currently working on Phase IV-B, 
Project 1 (Project 1) as described in Table 1 below: 
 


Table 1.  CIP IV-B, Project 1 
Year Projects Estimated Cost
2010  CIP IV-B, Project 1   


  


Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank (MR) – 
Construct a storage tank with a capacity of 
approximately 65,000 gallons at the top of Bonita 
Terrace, install a booster station, and connect with 
replacement reservoir at Upper Schoolhouse site.  $638,000 


  


Bonita Terrace (MR) - Replace 1,500 ft of existing main 
and appurtenances on Bonita Terrace, including ties to 
Schoolhouse Tank and  Delta Way (CIP IV-A), to create a 
loop. $238,000 







AWARD OF CIP PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 1 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   2   
March 4, 2010                                                                 


 


  


Riverlands Road (GV) - Replace 1,600 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances in Riverlands Road, including 
two ties at Drake Road to create a loop. $393,000 


  


Handy Andy Booster Feed Line (GV) – Replace 300 lf of 
existing main between Hwy 116 and the booster pump 
at Old Monte Rio Road. $59,000 


     
  2010 -  CIP IV-B, Project 1 Total $1,328,000 
  75% RDA/RRROC Funding Amount $899,250 


 
 
This construction project was advertised on January 28, 2010, and 6 bids were received 
and opened on February 24, 2010 in accordance with bid instructions.  The bidders and 
bid amounts are shown in Table 2 below.  Brelje & Race Consulting Civil Engineers 
(B&R), the firm providing design and construction management services for this project, 
has reviewed the bids and determined that W.R. Forde Associates is the apparent low 
bidder for the amount of $928,332.00.  B&R has determined that W.R. Forde Associates 
has the proper license to perform Project 1 and appears to otherwise be qualified to 
complete Project 1.  The bid of W.R. Forde Associates complies with the bid instructions 
and appears to be responsive.   
 
The work authorized under this contract is scheduled to start within 10 days of notice to 
proceed and, according to the contract, will be completed within 210 days of the notice 
to proceed. 
 
The contract amount is $928,332.00 which is $60,343.00 under the engineer’s estimate 
of probable cost of $988,675.00.  The staff recommendation includes authorization for 
the General Manager to approve up to $92,833.00 in total change order authority for 
work not anticipated by the contract with no single change order exceeding $25,000.  
This contract will be funded approximately 75% by a grant from the RDA and 25% from 
the Private Placement Loan Fund.  The work is part of the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program and will provide important and necessary improvements to the 
District’s distribution system. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 10-07 which conditionally awards the CIP 
Phase IV-B, Project 1 construction contract to W.R. Forde Associates for a not to exceed 
amount of $928,332.00, based on the Board's determination that W.R. Forde Associates 
is a responsible bidder and the bid submitted by W.R. Forde Associates is responsive, 
and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for an amount not to 
exceed $92,833.00, with no single change order exceeding $25,000.   The conditions of 
the bid award include W.R. Forde Associates' timely delivering a duly executed Project 
contract and submitting all required documents, including properly executed bonds, 
certificates of insurance and endorsements, pursuant to the Project bid documents. 
   


 







Item


1 6-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 1622 LF $46.00 $74,612.00 $51.75 $83,938.50 $64.00 $103,808.00 $55.00 $89,210.00 $82.00 $133,004.00 $119.00 $193,018.00
2 6-Inch Water Main (Type B Trench) 188 LF $60.00 $11,280.00 $72.75 $13,677.00 $95.00 $17,860.00 $80.00 $15,040.00 $82.00 $15,416.00 $72.00 $13,536.00
3 4-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 1040 LF $45.00 $46,800.00 $52.00 $54,080.00 $75.00 $78,000.00 $60.00 $62,400.00 $77.00 $80,080.00 $65.00 $67,600.00


4


4-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench with Patch 
Paving) 120 LF $50.00 $6,000.00 $60.90 $7,308.00 $58.00 $6,960.00 $60.00 $7,200.00 $150.00 $18,000.00 $90.00 $10,800.00


5 4-Inch Water Main (Type B Trench) 333 LF $44.00 $14,652.00 $49.35 $16,433.55 $58.00 $19,314.00 $50.00 $16,650.00 $66.00 $21,978.00 $57.00 $18,981.00
6 2-Inch Water Main (Type A Trench) 201 LF $38.00 $7,638.00 $45.25 $9,095.25 $55.00 $11,055.00 $25.00 $5,025.00 $50.00 $10,050.00 $50.00 $10,050.00


7


6-Inch Water Main and 2-Inch Electric 
Conduit (Type B Trench) 295 LF $70.00 $20,650.00 $71.00 $20,945.00 $65.00 $19,175.00 $80.00 $23,600.00 $88.00 $25,960.00 $78.00 $23,010.00


8


6-Inch Water Main, 4-Inch Water Main and 2-
Inch Electric Conduit (Type B Trench) 92 LF $100.00 $9,200.00 $125.50 $11,546.00 $87.00 $8,004.00 $110.00 $10,120.00 $115.00 $10,580.00 $140.00 $12,880.00


9


4-Inch Water Main and 2-1-Inch Electric 
Conduits (Type B Trench) 243 LF $50.00 $12,150.00 $78.25 $19,014.75 $88.00 $21,384.00 $75.00 $18,225.00 $84.00 $20,412.00 $93.00 $22,599.00


10


6-Inch Water Main Directional Drilled 
Installation 114 LF $75.00 $8,550.00 $53.60 $6,110.40 $95.00 $10,830.00 $215.00 $24,510.00 $100.00 $11,400.00 $128.00 $14,592.00


11 6-Inch Water Main On Bridge TR-Flex 1 LS $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $25,597.00 $25,597.00 $3,703.00 $3,703.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $27,000.00 $27,000.00 $18,900.00 $18,900.00
12 6-Inch Gate Valve 8 EA $1,100.00 $8,800.00 $1,315.00 $10,520.00 $1,600.00 $12,800.00 $1,300.00 $10,400.00 $1,087.00 $8,696.00 $1,550.00 $12,400.00
13 4-Inch Gate Valve 4 EA $1,300.00 $5,200.00 $1,964.00 $7,856.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,020.00 $4,080.00 $1,059.00 $4,236.00 $950.00 $3,800.00
14 2-Inch Gate Valve 3 EA $600.00 $1,800.00 $844.00 $2,532.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $710.00 $2,130.00 $591.00 $1,773.00 $725.00 $2,175.00
15 3/4-Inch Water Service (std.) 51 EA $850.00 $43,350.00 $1,412.00 $72,012.00 $2,200.00 $112,200.00 $1,625.00 $82,875.00 $1,600.00 $81,600.00 $1,700.00 $86,700.00
16 2-Inch and Smaller Water Main Tie-In 3 EA $1,400.00 $4,200.00 $2,742.00 $8,226.00 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 $1,400.00 $4,200.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,900.00 $5,700.00
17 Water Main Tie-In 7 EA $4,500.00 $31,500.00 $2,291.00 $16,037.00 $3,000.00 $21,000.00 $2,600.00 $18,200.00 $3,000.00 $21,000.00 $3,400.00 $23,800.00
18 Fire Hydrant 4 EA $4,200.00 $16,800.00 $4,357.00 $17,428.00 $6,800.00 $27,200.00 $5,500.00 $22,000.00 $6,000.00 $24,000.00 $4,300.00 $17,200.00
19 Wharf Hydrant 1 EA $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,033.00 $2,033.00 $2,300.00 $2,300.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00
20 Bollard 9 EA $300.00 $2,700.00 $357.00 $3,213.00 $435.00 $3,915.00 $300.00 $2,700.00 $300.00 $2,700.00 $400.00 $3,600.00
21 Booster Pump Station 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $27,559.00 $27,559.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $26,500.00 $26,500.00 $20,250.00 $20,250.00
22 Electrical Facilities 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $49,080.00 $49,080.00 $44,500.00 $44,500.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00 $50,900.00 $50,900.00


23


Modifications to Existing Booster Pump 
Station 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,731.00 $6,731.00 $5,470.00 $5,470.00 $13,500.00 $13,500.00 $8,620.00 $8,620.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00


24 Tank Pad Excavation 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $31,941.00 $31,941.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $32,200.00 $32,200.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $72,500.00 $72,500.00
25 Tank Site Retaining Wall 1 LS $63,000.00 $63,000.00 $57,480.00 $57,480.00 $67,150.00 $67,150.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $69,000.00 $69,000.00 $71,700.00 $71,700.00
26 Sub Excavation 20 CY $100.00 $2,000.00 $10.00 $200.00 $25.00 $500.00 $75.00 $1,500.00 $100.00 $2,000.00 $80.00 $1,600.00
27 Bolted Steel Tank Foundation Concrete 40 CY $400.00 $16,000.00 $556.00 $22,240.00 $600.00 $24,000.00 $370.00 $14,800.00 $550.00 $22,000.00 $330.00 $13,200.00


Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total


Argonaut Constructors Pfister Excavating North Bay Construction


Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total


W.R. Forde Piazza Construction Maggiora and Ghilotti


Sweetwater Springs Water District 


CIP Phase IV-B


Project 1 - Distribution System and Storage Improvements


Bid Tabulation


Feburary 24, 2010


Item No.


Estimated 


Quantity Unit


27 Bolted Steel Tank Foundation Concrete 40 CY $400.00 $16,000.00 $556.00 $22,240.00 $600.00 $24,000.00 $370.00 $14,800.00 $550.00 $22,000.00 $330.00 $13,200.00


28 Bolted Steel Tank Foundation Reinforcement 3200 LBS $1.00 $3,200.00 $1.05 $3,360.00 $1.00 $3,200.00 $2.00 $6,400.00 $4.00 $12,800.00 $1.00 $3,200.00
29 Bolted Steel Tank 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $78,138.00 $78,138.00 $62,500.00 $62,500.00 $57,250.00 $57,250.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $65,000.00 $65,000.00
30 Tank Site Piping 1 LS $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $53,559.00 $53,559.00 $48,330.00 $48,330.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $42,000.00 $42,000.00
31 Tank Site Surfacing 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $7,519.00 $7,519.00 $2,600.00 $2,600.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
32 Tank Site fencing 1 LS $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,385.00 $7,385.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00
33 Concrete Tank 1 LS $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $62,969.00 $62,969.00 $43,200.00 $43,200.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $65,000.00 $65,000.00
34 Sheeting and Shoring 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $100.00 $100.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
35 Abandon Existing Booster Pump Station 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00
36 Abandon Gate Valve 3 EA $150.00 $450.00 $100.00 $300.00 $250.00 $750.00 $160.00 $480.00 $300.00 $900.00 $325.00 $975.00
37 Abandon Wharf Hydrant 2 EA $300.00 $600.00 $100.00 $200.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $300.00 $600.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $500.00


38


Trench Through Stump Greater Than 18 
Inches in Diameter 5 EA $200.00 $1,000.00 $1.00 $5.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00


39 County Road Restoration 45000 SF $3.00 $135,000.00 $2.05 $92,250.00 $2.35 $105,750.00 $1.90 $85,500.00 $1.60 $72,000.00 $1.75 $78,750.00
40 Harrison Tank Site Modification 1 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,925.00 $6,925.00 $7,300.00 $7,300.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $5,300.00 $5,300.00
41 Driveway Surfacing 12000 EA $2.00 $24,000.00 $2.25 $27,000.00 $1.80 $21,600.00 $1.15 $13,800.00 $2.00 $24,000.00 $1.40 $16,800.00
42 1" Water Service (Std) 1 EA $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,772.00 $1,772.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00


TOTAL BID (ITEMS 1-42) $928,332.00 $945,216.45 $959,959.00 $968,695.00 $1,070,405.00 $1,107,766.00



jkenny

Typewritten Text

Table 2







Resolution No. 10-07 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT  
BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CIP 


PHASE IV-B, PROJECT 1, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER 
TOTAL CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL OF $92,833 AND SINGLE CHANGE 


ORDER APPROVAL UP TO $25,000 
 


 WHEREAS, District staff, including the District Engineer, prepared construction 
bid documents and advertised for construction of the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1  
(“Project”); and 
 


WHEREAS, District staff solicited bids for the Project on January 28, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 24, 2010, six bids were received and opened in 


accordance with the bid instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest bid for the Project was from W.R. Forde Associates in the 


amount of $928,332 and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has determined that W.R. Forde Associates’ bid satisfies the 


bidding requirements for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has verified that W.R. Forde Associates possesses the 


required licenses and is otherwise qualified to perform the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the 


California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of 
Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 
facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project has been approved by the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC), and the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment 
Agency (CRA) for approximately 75% grant funding, with the remaining amount funded 
by the District.  The District has adequate funds to fund its portion of the project funding 
amount; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction 
 
 







Resolution 10-07. Construction Contract for CIP IV-B, Project 1 with W.R. Forde Associates 2 
March 4, 2010 


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of $928,332.00; 
and 


 
2. Waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of W.R. Forde Associates 


for the Project; and 
 
3. Finds the bid in the amount of $928,332.00 to be the lowest responsive 


bid and further finds that W.R. Forde Associates is a responsible bidder; and 
 
4. Awards the contract for the CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 to W.R. Forde 


Associates in the amount of $928,332.00, the amount of the lowest responsive bid, 
conditioned on W.R. Forde Associates timely executing the Project contract and submitting 
all required documents, including but not limited to, executed bonds, certificates of 
insurance, and endorsements, in accordance with the Project bid documents; and 


 
5. Directs staff to issue a Notice of Award to W.R. Forde Associates; and 
 
6. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the Project contract 


on behalf of the District upon timely submission by W.R. Forde Associates of the signed 
Project contract and all other required contract documents, in accordance with the contract 
bid instructions.  


 
7. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 


without Board approval up to $25,000 per change order, with total change order approval 
not to exceed $92,833. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on March 4, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-A Award of Contract,  Phase IV-B, Project 1

		Meeting Date : March 4, 2010 



		Item V-A.1-CIP IV-B Project 1 Bid Results

		Item V-A.2-Resolution 10-07 Award of Contract










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 4, 2010  
 
Subject:  DRAFT FY 2010-11 BUDGET  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the Draft FY 2010-11 District 
Budget.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Draft Budget 
 
The Draft FY 2010-2011 (FY11) Budget is attached as Exhibit A.  Figures 1 and 2 
show the relative total revenues and expenses projected for the Operating and 
Capital Budget.  The draft Budget was discussed by the Ad Hoc Budget 
Committee on February 16 and February 24.  Staff have met many times to 
develop the appropriate line item amounts for the Operating section of the 
Budget.  The Capital section includes CIP IV-B, Project 2.    The format used this 
year is similar to the format used in last year’s budget.  A column has been 
added to show the changes from the revised FY10 Budget.  Assumptions used to 
develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 
 


• No Water Use and Base Rate Charges or Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
(CDRC) increases. 


• Less water will be sold in FY11, the revenue from the CDRC has been 
revised to match FY10 actual, and lower interest is expected, which results 
in less revenue in the Operating Budget (approximately $67,000 less than 
budgeted in FY10). 


• A small increase in Salaries and Benefits. 
• A small decrease in total Supplies and Services. 
• The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $40,000 


less than last year. 
 


With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between FY11 and FY10 are 
less meaningful because completely different capital projects are undertaken 
from year to year.  The major highlight of the FY11 Budget is CIP IV-B, Project 2 
which is approximately 75% funded by a grant from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA), supported by the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC). 
 







FY 2010-11 DRAFT BUDGET  2  
March 4, 2010 


 


The Budget does not include expenses associated with the Monte Rio Treatment 
Plant filter repair/maintenance.  The costs and timing of this issue are not known 
at this time but it is likely some expense greater than $20,000 will be required in 
FY11.  When staff know more about what will be required, the recommended 
action will be brought before the Board.   
 
District Reserves 
 
The FY11 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 
2009.   
 


• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget 
expenses for emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 


• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 
downturn or other economic crisis. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve - 15% of the Operating Budget expenses to 
ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for 
similar issues with the capital program. 
 


The draft Budget shows staff intentions to align District Funds amounts with the 
Reserve Policy.  The Operations Fund will be reduced to $200,000 to align with 
the Operating Balance reserve.  The Operating Reserve will be increased to 
include the approximate balances for the Budget and Economic Reserves.  The 
Capital Reserve and other undesignated reserves will be in the CIRF and 
Redwood Credit Union certificate of deposit.  The draft Budget shows a Policy 
Reserve of $1,085,152 and $2,685,975 in Reserves Above Policy.   
 
Capital Improvement Planning 
 
By keeping track of the Reserves Above District Policy and the Fund and Loan 
balances, the District has a measure of the health of the District’s finances and 
we can make projections into the future on rate policies and what capital 
projects the District can afford (and when).   Exhibit B, Sweetwater Springs 
Water District Capital Planning Budget shows a projection of the District financial 
picture through FY15 which covers the currently approved FY10-FY15 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP).  The RDA/RRROC grant assistance for FY10 and 
FY11 allow the District to complete the approved CIP and still maintain a positive 
Funds Above District Policy at the end of the planning period.  This analysis 
assumes a 1.5% increase in new operating revenues through a cost of living 
index increase to the base rate and water use charges starting in FY12 and a 
25% per year increase in the Capital Debt Reduction Charge bringing that 
amount to full debt recovery by the end of the planning period, and no further 
grant assistance from RDA/RRROC.  The CIP will be updated in the autumn of 
2010 and the projects recommended for inclusion may change.  Such changes 
would change the financial picture as well.   







FY 2010-11 DRAFT BUDGET  3  
March 4, 2010 


 


Proposition 218 Notice 
Proposition 218 requires that 45 day notice be given for rate increases.  Because 
no rate increases are planned with this budget, no Prop 218 notices will be 
mailed this year.   
 


Figure 1.  Sweetwater Springs Revenues, FY10
Total - $4.02 Million


Water Sales,  $1,770,000 , 
44%


Interest,  $100,000 , 2%


Assessments,  $777,000 , 
19%


Other,  $79,200 , 2% CDRC,  $227,000 , 6%
RDA Grant,  $1,065,000 , 


27%


 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Expenses, FY11
Total - $4.28 Million


Capital Improvements, 
1,600,000, 36%


Salary and Benefits, 
1,051,800, 25%


Debt Repayment, 1,091,314, 
26%


Services and Supplies, 
536,080, 13%


 







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


1


2


3
4
5
6


7


8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23


24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32


33


34
35
36
37
38


39


40


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q
OPERATING BUDGET  


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES
REVENUE


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 169,568 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)        revenue from current CDRC, no increase


4031.1. · Water Sales 1,796,352 1,796,092 1,796,092 1,796,000 1,770,000   (26,092)        
reduction based on income model reduction 
of 5% in total sales, no increase in rates


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,965,920 2,048,518 2,048,518 2,023,000 1,997,000 (51,518)        
NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 0 -                 -               
1700 · Interest 54,731 50,000 50,000 50,000 40,000       (10,000)        lower interest rates
3600 · Construction New Services 12,088 6,000 6,000 6,000 5,000         (1,000)           
3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 2,677 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000         -                
4032 · Rent 70,796 74,600 74,600 70,000 70,000       (4,600)          
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 3,472 2,200 2,200 3,000 2,200         -               


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 143,764 134,800 134,800 131,000 119,200 (15,600)        
TOTAL REVENUE 2,109,684 2,183,318 2,183,318 2,154,000 2,116,200 (67,118)        


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 635,500 687,229 687,229 692,408 702,200      14,971          Small Increase in salaries


5912 · Overtime 30,106 33,000 33,000 26,000 33,000       -               overtime hours should be going down some
5916 · On-Call Pay 24,147 26,436 26,436 26,870 26,500       64                same as last year 
5918 · Extra help - Contract 32,175 32,000 32,000 33,280 33,500       1,500            includes received pay increase


Total Salary 721,928 778,665 778,665 778,558 795,200 16,535          
Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending -1,105 0 0 0 -                 -               
5920 · Retirement 90,771 98,797 98,797 96,900 98,600       (197)             
5920.1 · Retirement - Prior Service cost 0  0 -                 -               
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 13,187 14,006 14,006 11,000 14,300       294              


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 110,372 116,715 116,715 113,400 116,000      (715)             20% increase in health premiums in 2011


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 23,591 34,069 34,069 35,152 27,700       (6,369)          
High projected base on half year, current 
rates


Total Benefits 236,816 263,587 263,587 256,452 256,600 (6,987)          
Total SALARY & BENEFITS 958,744 1,042,252 1,042,252 1,035,010 1,051,800 9,548            
SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


6040-I · Internet service 1,689 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800         
-               


Comcast -$70/month: 840
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 3,179 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100         


-               


SCADA - $65/mo. = $780
Verizon - $135/mo (F) = $1,620
Verizon $34/mo (A) = $408
Misc. parts/holders etc. - $200 (F)







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


2


3


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES


41


42


43


44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51


52
53
54


55


56


57
58
59
60


61
62


6040-LD · Long Distance 538 700 700 700 700            -               
AT&T - $50/mo = $600.  Combine with 6040-
T???


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 734 900 900 900 900            -               
Cook - $53/mo (F) = $636
Misc. parts/batteries = $200 (F)


6040-S · SCADA software maint. 413 0 0 500 500            
500              


Wonderware.


6040-T · Telephones 12,265 12,000 12,000 12,000 13,800       1,800            
Ans. Svc. $150/mo = $1800
Phones  $1,000/mo = $12,000


Total Communications 18,818 18,500 18,500 19,000 20,800 2,300            
Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 49,248 50,000 50,000 41,444 40,000       (10,000)        15% rate discount
6102 · Auto/Equipment 12,276 17,600 17,600 4,682 10,500       (7,100)          


Total Insurances 61,524 67,600 67,600 46,126 50,500 (17,100)        
Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 12,880 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000       -                


6151 · Office Maintenance 2,194 10,700 10,700 8,000 4,800         


(5,900)          


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
Shoretel maint. contract - $800/year
The Compute Wizard - $155/mo = 
$1860/year
Copy mach. maint - 470/yr
US Netcom - $900/yr


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 15,074 22,700 22,700 20,000 16,800 (5,900)          
Maint/Repair - Facilities


6085 · Janitorial Services 5,750 6,700 6,700 6,700 7,100         


400              


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $200/mo = 
$2400
Sunrise Garbage $1150
Sewer - GVTP ($1000)


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 57,457 70,000 70,000 70,000 64,000       
(6,000)          


Includes $14,000 to inspect and clean 
sediment from bottom of ten tanks and 
$2,000 for repairs.


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 25,866 45,000 45,000 45,000 56,000       


11,000          


Includes $1,000 for an unexpected pump or 
mortor at the well field. 
Includes the cost to rebuild two MIOX 
chlorine generation cells
(Does not include maintenance ore 
replacement of filters at MRTP)


6143 · Generator Maintenance 21,265 3,000 3,000 3,000 1,200         (1,800)          (Non-scheduled maintenance year.)
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 110,338 124,700 124,700 124,700 128,300 3,600            
Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 4,777 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,200         


100              


USA $150
AWWA $355
CSDA $3500
So. Cty EAC $70
MR Chamber -$50
Cal Rural $850
WCWW $150


6303 · Claims 638 1,500 1,500 500 1,500         -                







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


3


3


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES


63
64
65


66


67


68


69


70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79


80
81
82


6593 · Governmental Fees 8,234 12,000 12,000 12,000 21,700       9,700            


Dept of Public Health and State Board 
$12,000
Maps $50
Encroachment permit: $445
Elections costs: $4,000                                   
LAFCO $5200


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 13,649 18,600 18,600 17,600 28,400 9,800            
Office Expense


6410 · Postage 16,384 17,000 17,000 17,000 15,000       


(2,000)          


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.44 X 12 months) = 
$10,560
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .44 = $1,760
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .44 = $1,584
Other mail


6430 · Printing Expense 7,226 5,250 5,250 7,500 6,500         


1,250            


Window Envelopes $950
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills $1500
Doorhangers $175
Turn Off Notices $450
Letterhead $300
CCRs $600
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $600
Newletter: $500


6461 · Office Supplies 7,209 7,000 7,000 6,000 6,500         


(500)             


Supplies $5000
Plants $150
Christmas Tree $80
Coffee services $50/mo = $600
Christmas party $400


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 907 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000         


-               


Press Democrat $200 (A)
Legal Notices $600 (A)
Sonoma West $40 (A)
Safety Meeting Outlines $80 (F)


6890 · Computers/Software 3,284 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,700         


(250)             


Antivirus softsware ($30X5) = $300
Misc. $400
Workstation for SM: $900


6579 · Furniture 161 1,000 1,000 600 500            (500)             Better table for office area??
Total Office Expense 35,171 33,200 33,200 34,050 31,200       (2,000)          
Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 11,613 14,800 14,800 14,800 16,000       1,200             
6880 · Tools and Equipment 5,216 5,500 5,500 5,500 6,000         500               
6881 · Safety Equipment 478 2,000 2,000 2,000 1,800         (200)              


Total Operating Supplies 17,307 22,300 22,300 22,300 23,800 1,500            
Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 2,545 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600         -               Mission $50/week = $2600


6521 · County charges 1,394 1,500 1,500 1,500 -                 (1,500)          moved to Government Fees and Accounting


6587 · LAFCO charges 4,469 4,700 4,700 4,761 -                 (4,700)          moved to Government fees 
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 6,759 8,500 8,500 8,500 9,000         500               







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


4


3


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES


83
84
85
86


87
88
89


90
91
92
93


94
95


96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103


104
105
106
107
108
109


6570 · Consultant Fees 24,689 25,000 25,000 17,000 20,000       


(5,000)          


KG/SM/JK discuss
IEDA $900/mo = $10,800
Digital Buffet $400/qtr = $1600
SCADA $1000
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) 
$600
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500


6590 · Engineering 2,611 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000         (1,000)           
6591 · Engineering - re Cal Water 6,579 0 0 0 -                 -               
6610 · Legal 26,613 20,000 20,000 22,000 22,000       2,000            same as projected


6630 · Audit/Accounting 17,255 18,000 18,000 25,000 * 22,000       


4,000            


ADP $260/mo = $3120
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $6,500 (we need to renew his 
contract)
United Bank $560/mo = $6720
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
Pam Rones 1099 = $250
Online Checks fee $30/mo = $360 
CountyAcnting fees $1000


Total Professional Services 92,914 82,300 82,300 82,361 76,600 (5,700)          
Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,146 2,000 2,000 2,000 3,500         
1,500            


Pitney Bowes Mail Machine $327/qtr. = 
$1308 (A)
A-Action rents $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000       -               
Total Rents & Leases 28,146 29,000 29,000 29,000 30,500 1,500            
Transportation & Travel


7120 · Seminars & related travel 3,579 4,500 4,500 2,000 4,000         


(500)             


JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1,200 (as long at State provides 
expense reimbursement program


7201 · Vehicle Gas 20,897 16,800 16,800 22,000 20,000       3,200            Est. $1400/mo + extra


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 12,255 6,360 6,360 6,360 6,400         
40                


SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


Total Transportation & Travel 36,731 27,660 27,660 30,360 30,400 2,740            
Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 1,136 1,330 1,330 1,330 1,330         -               $190 X 7 = $1330
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,068 1,200 1,200 1,215 1,200         -               
6021.4 · Jackets 181 360 360 360 250            (110)              


Total Uniforms 2,385 2,890 2,890 2,905 2,780 (110)             
Utilities


7320 · Electric and Propane 94,459 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000       
-               


Electricity - Office $3000 (A)
Electricity - Field $90,000 (F)
Propane $3000 (A)


Total Utilities 94,459 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000       -               
Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 526,516 545,450 545,450 524,402 536,080 (9,370)          


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,485,260 1,587,702 1,587,702 1,559,412 1,587,880 178              
OPERATING SURPLUS(DEFICIT) 624,424 595,616 595,616 594,588 528,320 (67,296)        


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


5


3


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES


110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154


8517 · Field/Office equipment 1,146 5,000 5,000 5,700 * 1,050         (3,950)          
Admin:  (None for FY 2009-10)
Field: 12" Stihl cut-off saw


8573 · Vehicles 30,777 0 0 0 -                 -                
8570 · Furniture 0 0 0 0 -                 -               
8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 6,713 0 0 0 -                 -                
8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 -                 -               
8511.4 · Warehouse Improvements 0 0 0 0 -                 -                


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 38,636 5,000 5,000 5,700 1,050 (3,950)          
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS -               


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 170,000 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)        same as CDRC revenue
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 200,000 280,000 280,000 280,000 240,000      (40,000)        based on bottom line, 
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000       -               same as 10
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000       -               same as 10


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 410,000 572,426 572,426 547,000 507,000 (65,426)        
DISASTER EXPENSE -               


5141 · Disaster Wages - Staff 0 0 0 0 -                 -               
7895 · Disaster Costs - Svces/Supplies 0 0 0 0 -                 -               


Total DISASTER EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 0 -               
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 175,788 18,190 18,190 41,888 20,270 2,080            


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 23,497 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000       -               
Annual Assessment (County) 704,304 710,000 710,000 710,000 710,000      -               
Prior Year Assessment 45,110 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000       -               
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 170,000 252,426 252,426 227,000 227,000      (25,426)        
Interest 95,156 95,000 95,000 60,000 60,000       (35,000)        
Federal Grants 0 0 0 -               
Neeley Road Slide claim reimbursement 0 -               
County Reimb. for FEMA Viaduct Project 82,856 -               
Cal Trans Reimb. For Culvert Project -               
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A, Projects 1 and 2 545,780 -               
CDC Grants, CIP IV-A FY09 Carryover 437,720 437,720 (437,720)       
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 899,250 899,250 (899,250)       
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 30,000 30,000 1,065,000   1,035,000     
Private Placement Funding (Carryover) 1,363,536 222,945 222,945 (222,945)       
Private Placement Funding (CIP IV-B) 1,052,000 438,750 438,750 440,000      1,250            
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 200,000 280,000 280,000 280,000 240,000      (40,000)        
Transfers to State Loans from Operations 0 -               
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000                 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000       -               
TOTAL REVENUE 3,255,239 2,481,426 3,458,091 3,397,665 2,834,000 (624,091)       


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 684,058 687,000 687,000 687,000 687,000      -               
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 170,300 170,300 170,300      -               







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, 2010-2011


6


3


A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q


FY 08-09 
FINAL (CASH)


09-10
BUDGET


09-10
REVISED


FY 09-10
Projected


 FY 10-11
BUDGET 


Change 
FY11-FY10 


Revised NOTES


155
156
157
158
159
160


161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180


181
182
183


184


185


186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193


Loan to Neeley Road Slide claim -                 -               
Private Placement Loan 117,007 234,014 234,014 234,014 234,014      -               
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 971,236 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 -               


Guerne Way Improvements
Tank/Facilities Improvements


1,100
CIP III 35,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 85,000       35,000          
CIP IV-A 1,306,335 0
CIP IV-A, FY09 Carryover 660,665 660,665 (660,665)       
CIP IV-B, Project 1 69,601 1,052,000 1,328,000       1,328,000 (1,328,000)    
CIP IV-B, Project 2 40,000 40,000 1,475,000   1,435,000     
Crespo Tank Replacement Project -               
In-House Construction Projects 57,472 40,000 40,000 40,000       -               
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,440,744 2,193,314 3,209,979 3,209,979 2,691,314 (518,665)       
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 814,495 288,112 248,112 187,686 142,686 (105,426)       


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Balance 200,000               200,000          200,000          200,000             200,000      -               


Budget Reserve (10%) 207,736               218,332          158,770          158,770             158,788      18                


Economic Reserve (15%) 311,605               327,498          238,155          238,155             238,182      27                


Debt Repayment Reserve (15%) 238,155          238,155             238,182      27                


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000          250,000          250,000             250,000      -               


   Total District Policy 969,341               995,830          1,085,081       1,085,081          1,085,152   71                Sum of policy reserves above


TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,372,311            3,069,581       3,652,274       3,615,546          3,761,127   108,853        Sum of District Fund balances below


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,402,970            2,073,751       2,567,193       2,530,465          2,675,975   108,782        
Difference between Total and Policy 
Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF 1,606,129            1,470,596       1,854,241       1,793,815          2,364,572   510,331        
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
includes capital and debt repayment reserve


OPERATING RESERVE 225,000               225,000          225,000          225,000             396,970      171,970        
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
budget and economic reserve


OPERATIONS 770,352               603,609          788,542          812,240             200,000      (588,542)       
balancing this fund to reflect reserve policy, 
operating balance


CD 573,223               601,597          601,884          601,884             631,978      30,094          


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 121,757               107,929          106,757          106,757             91,757       (15,000)        


BUILDING 75,850                 60,850            75,850            75,850               75,850       -               


DISTRICT LOANS
PPL 1,867,255            940,399          1,205,560       1,205,560          765,560      (440,000)       


Hwy. 116 ("S"Curves" Main Repl. And MRTP 
Bottleneck Pipe Replacement







 Exhibit B.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
Capital Planning Budget 
FY 09-10
Projected FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15


REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
Net Operating Revenues* 321,888$        260,270$        264,174$       268,137$        272,159$      276,241$      
Total Assessments 782,000$        782,000$        782,000$       782,000$        782,000$      782,000$      
Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 227,000$        227,000$        227,000$       283,750$        354,688$      404,300$      
Capital Interest 60,000$          60,000$          75,287$         47,966$          26,242$        11,574$        
CDC Grants 899,250$        1,065,000$     
Private Placement Funding (Loan proceeds) 438,750$        440,000$        765,560$       -$                
Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 380,000$       1,030,000$     680,000$      470,000$      


TOTAL REVENUE 2,728,888$     2,834,270$     2,494,021$    2,411,852$     2,115,088$   1,944,115$   


Total Debt Payments 1,091,314$     1,091,314$     1,091,314$    1,091,314$     1,091,314$   1,091,314$   
CIP III 50,000$          85,000$          
CIP IV-A (Obligated)


CIP IV-B, Proj 1 CIPIV-B, Proj 2 FY 12 CIP FY 13 CIP FY 14 CIP FY 15 CIP
Annual CIP  $    1,328,000 1,475,000$     1,355,000$    1,265,000$     974,000$      807,000$      
In-House Construction Projects 40,000$          40,000$          40,000$         40,000$          40,000$        40,000$        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,509,314$     2,691,314$     2,486,314$    2,396,314$     2,105,314$   1,938,314$   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 219,574$        142,956$        7,707$           15,538$          9,774$          5,801$          


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
Funds above District Reserve Policy 2,530,465$     2,673,421$     2,301,128$    1,286,666$     616,440$      152,241$      
Begining PP Loan
EOY PP LOAN 1,205,560$     765,560$        -$               
Total Funding Available for CIP 3,736,025$     3,438,981$     2,301,128$    1,286,666$     616,440$      152,241$      
* Projection includes annual COLA rate increase for Water Use  and Base Rate Charges starting in FY12  (1.5% net revenue increase)
** Projection delays CDRC rate increases to FY13, 25% increase per year afterwards to pay for Private Placement Loan interest and principal


EXPENSES





		Item V-B - FY2010-11 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: March 4, 2010 



		Item V-B.1 Capital and Operating Budget - 10-11 

		Combined (FY11D)



		Item V-B.2 Capital Planning Budget 

		Proj Capital Program (FY11)








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 4, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT TOILET REBATE 
PROGRAM  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve District funding of a toilet rebate program.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Up to $10,000 for the rebate program and some amount of 
reduced income due to reduced water sales. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Replacing older toilets with more efficient toilets, 1.6 gallons per flush or less, has been a 
water conservation best management practice (BMP) for many years.  That BMP has taken 
the form of a rebate program, or equivalent.  This BMP has been included in statewide and 
regional efforts including the California Urban Water Conservation Coalition (CUWCC), which 
is a statewide organization aimed at an industry  based  consensus approach to developing 
water conservation standards, the Department of Water Resources Urban Water 
Management Plans (BMP’s in there are based on CUWCC programs), State Water 
Resources Control Board actions, and approvals for receiving water from the State Water 
Project and Bureau of Reclamation projects.   According to the Sonoma County Water 
Agency, a 1.28 gallon per flush fixture provides water use reduction of approximately 8,300 
gallons per year when compared to a 3.5 gallon per flush fixture.   
 
The District is involved in meeting statewide standards through our participation in water 
rights (State Water Resources Control Board) and through completing the five-yearly Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) which is accepted and reviewed by the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR).  One of the comments on the 2005 UWMP was 
that there was no mention of meeting the toilet rebate program BMP.  Water rights on the 
Russian River will remain a contentious item and a minimum compliance with statewide 
BMP’s may become an issue for the District.  Toilet rebate programs are common elements 
of up-to-standard water conservation programs.   
 
The District is currently the beneficiary of a rebate and a direct install toilet replacement 
program funded by the Russian River County Sanitation District for customers of that district 
which includes much of the District’s Guerneville system.  Under the Sanitation District’s 
programs, their customers can apply for a rebate of up to $150 per toilet or have a 
cooperating plumbing contractor replace their existing toilet at no cost to the customer.  The 
Sanitation District also has a $125 rebate program for high efficiency clothes washers.  
Sweetwater Springs Water District staff get many calls from District customers regarding the 
rebate programs.  If they are customers of the Sanitation District we tell them how to apply 
for the rebates.  At the date of this report, Sanitation District records showed that they had 







DISTRICT TOILET REBATE PROGRAM 2  
March 4, 2010 


 


processed 38 toilet rebates and 290 direct installations.  The higher number of direct installs 
can be attributed to the lower cost and ease for the customer and the direct outreach that is 
being done by the participating plumbing contractors.  The direct install program is costing 
approximately $440 per fixture for the Sanitation District.  The Sanitation District has 
processed 13 clothes washer rebates.  The County Sanitation District rebate applies to toilets 
manufactured prior to 1992 when 1.6 gallon per flush efficiency standard went into effect in 
California and requires replacement with toilets (that are on an approved list) that meet a 
1.28 gallon per flush standard. 
 
The proposal is to extend the $150 per toilet rebate program to areas of the District which are 
not covered by the Sanitation District rebate programs.  We do not propose to include the 
plumber installation program (too expensive) nor the clothes washer rebate program (too 
few).  Inclusion of the rebate program in the District’s Water Conservation Program will allow 
the District to claim full participation with this BMP and give participation in this standard to all 
customers of the District.   
 
We recommend an initial allocation of $10,000 for this program.  When we become near the 
end of the allocation, the District can review the progress and benefits of the program, 
including coordination with Sanitation District programs, to determine if more money should 
be allocated.     





		Meeting Date: March 4, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 4, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 
AUDITOR SERVICES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct staff to issue a request for proposals/ 
qualifications for District auditing services.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board of Directors approved the District’s FY 2008-2009 audit at the 
February meeting.  The District’s auditor, Michael Celentano, has provided 
auditing services for the District for five years.  A common recommendation 
regarding auditing services is that an agency change auditors every 3-5 years  
to ensure a outside auditor gets a fresh look at agency finances and financial 
processes, and to ensure that the relationship between agency staff and the 
auditors remain at an appropriate distance.   
 
Staff is very happy with the services that Mr. Celetano has provided, but, in 
accordance with the above recommendation, realize that a change is 
appropriate.  Staff will be preparing the request for proposals/qualifications and 
will work to develop an agreement with an auditor that provides accurate and 
cost effective auditing services for the District in time for reviewing this current 
fiscal year.   
 
When an agreement with an auditing firm has been completed, it will be brought 
to the Board for its approval.      





		Meeting Date: March 4, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 4, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in January were 19,233 units 


(44.0 AF) and production was 66.5 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales are 
less and production is more (48.7 and 62.0 AF, respectively).   The attached 
Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains.  In January we had 14 
total leaks and spent 59 man-hours on them.   That’s more leaks and man-
hours than last month (December) and more leaks but fewer man-hours 
than January one year ago.   Figure 2 shows leak history and man-hours 
spent dealing with leaks since 2001 and continues to show a declining trend 
for both leaks and man hours.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.  The 


data shown in this chart is approximate – I have a number of sources for 
Guerneville rainfall, all differ slightly.  This chart is using the published 
National Weather Service Coop rainfall data, updated for this month by 
Weather Underground information which states to be from the Guerneville 
Fire Station which is also supposed to be the source of data for the Coop 
Program and the Press Democrat, but which all differ slightly.  I believe it’s 
approximately correct and gives us a decent picture about what’s going on 
this year.  February rainfall has been below average for the month and less 
than January, but this is still a positive rainfall year (and rainfall is expected 
for the end of February and is not accounted for in this chart).   We are not 
currently at average in Guerneville, according to my calculations, but I have 
read that other areas in the Russian River watershed are above average, 
and the Russian River reservoirs are basically full.  Regardless of rainfall, 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
March 4, 2010 


Sonoma County Water Agency will be asking for a Temporary Urgency 
Change for summer flows because of the regulatory requirements of the 
Biological Opinion on the operations of Warm Springs and Coyote Dams.       


  
 


  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-01 Nov-01 May-02 Nov-02 May-03 Nov-03 May-04 Nov-04 May-05 Nov-05 May-06 Nov-06 May-07 Nov-07 May-08 Nov-08 May-09 Nov-09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 


Sales
Production
%Difference


A
F)


(


)
%(


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
March 4, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


450


500


3,150


3,500


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


B
re


ak
s


-


350


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-09
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-09


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


2010 Urban Water Management Plan December-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-10


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: March 4, 2010 



